

eRAD RIS

CUSTOMER RELEASE NOTES

Build v3.2021.5.24

UPDATED JUNE 3, 2021

Table of Contents

Summary	2
Intended Audience	2
Who Is Affected	2
New Settings	3
RIS	3
Changes to Access Strings	3
Changes to SysConfig Settings	3
Changes to PreApprovedPaymentRule RIS Lookup Table	4
New Features	5
Payment Control	5
Feature #27641 - Support for pre-approved payment amount	5
Resolved Issues and Known Limitations	18
Resolved Issues	
Known Limitations	18
Version Details	19
Package Contents	
Code Stream	
eRAD RIS Release Version Numbers	

Publication History

Revision	Author	Description
June 3, 2021	Kevin Brooks	Commercial release.
	/ Hilary Saltmarsh	

SUMMARY

Intended Audience

The intended audience for this CUSTOMER RELEASE NOTES document is the RIS Administration team for all eRAD RIS customers.

This document describes the purpose, configuration, and operation of new features made available with this release, identifies issues resolved in the release, and highlights any unresolved known limitations.

This information should be used by all customers to determine how these changes affect their organization's workflow, and to plan their organization's upgrade strategy for eRAD RIS.



There is no separate SERVICE RELEASE NOTES edition of this document.

Who Is Affected

This release of ERAD RIS v3.2021.5.24 introduces support for pre-approved payments and includes a variety of significant performance enhancements.

This version is recommended to be applied on ERAD RIS v3.2018.5.10 installations.



Pleased carefully review these release notes even if your system will not be upgraded immediately, to identify and communicate any issues that may affect your organization.

NEW SETTINGS

Summary of all settings that were added, updated, or removed.

RIS

Changes to Access Strings

The following settings were added or updated with this release:

Setting	Default	Purpose
Clinical.EditAmountToCollectOrCurrentDOSP aymentAmount	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls the ability to edit the "Amount to Collect" value in the Payment Details dialog when a Previous Balance does not exist. Added in v3.2021.5.24 #27641
Clinical.EditPreApprovedPaymentAmount	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls the ability to edit the "PreApproved payment amount" value in the Payment Details dialog when AllowImaginePreApprovedPayment is enabled. Added in v3.2021.5.24 #27641
Clinical.NoTimeOfServicePaymentCheckbox	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls access to the "No time of service payment" checkbox on the Payment Details screen. This action sets the Payment for Previous Balance to \$0.00 and sets the Payment for Current DOS and Amount to Collect to the value for NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment (e.g., \$0.01) to allow for a PreApproved Payment. Added in v3.2021.5.24 #27641
Clinical.PaymentDetails	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls access to the "Payment Details" screen prior to launching ImaginePay when AllowImaginePreApprovedPayment is enabled. This will allow the user to collect a PreApproved Payment. To edit the default value for the PreApproved Payment, Clinical.EditPreApprovedPayment is also needed. Added in v3.2021.5.24 #27641
Config.LookupEditor.PreApprovedPaymentR ule	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls access to the "PreApprovedPaymentRule" lookup table editor. Added in v3.2021.5.24 #27641

Changes to SysConfig Settings

The following settings were added or updated with this release:

Setting	Default	Purpose
AllowImaginePreApprovedPayment	Value=Boolean, Default=[False]	When True and ImaginePay is enabled, the PreApproved Payment workflow is enabled. Added in v3.2018.5.24 #27641

Setting	Default	Purpose
NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment	Value=Decimal, Default=[0.10]	If a PreApproved Payment is set up when a patient is not also making a time of service payment in the same transaction, a nominal charge is required for ImaginePay to tokenize the credit card. This setting controls the amount that will be charged to the credit card for the tokenization process. This amount is not applied when taking a time of service payment and setting up a PreApproved payment in the same transation. Added in v3.2018.5.24 #27641

Changes to PreApprovedPaymentRule RIS Lookup Table

This RIS Lookup Table Editor is new with this release.

NEW FEATURES

Payment Control

Feature #27641 - Support for pre-approved payment amount

Summary

The RIS payment workflow now supports entering a pre-approved payment amount that will be processed by ImaginePay and utilized to charge the patient up to an agreed upon amount if there is additional money owed by the patient after the claim has been adjudicated.

Background

Collecting on the estimated financial responsibility at the time of service can sometimes result in underpayment or overpayment as exact amounts are not known until the insurance claim is adjudicated. Even with all of the tools available to predict the patient's financial responsibility, there are times when we have a lower level of confidence (for example, a service that is unlikely to be covered by insurance or a less reliable eligibility connection).

With PreApproved Payment, having a pre-approved and tokenized payment method on file increases confidence that the future payment is viable; and the need (and associated fees) to refund overpayments or chase the patient for the remaining amount owed is reduced or eliminated.

Feature Description

This enhancement adds a new payment dialog, called <u>Payment Details</u>, that is displayed when ImaginePay is enabled, prior to launching ImaginePay. It allows staff to enter a pre-approved payment amount to be used with a credit card that the patient has given permission for the radiology provider to charge up to the agreed upon amount, for the purpose of settling any remaining amount owed by the patient once the claim has been adjudicated by their insurance company.

This amount is *not* a HOLD on the funds. It simply gives the radiology provider permission to charge the remaining amount due after adjudication up to the agreed upon amount. If the amount owed exceeds the pre-approved amount, the patient will need to be billed for the difference.

The credit card used is stored in ImaginePay in a way to use it again later; RIS itself does not store the credit card details.

General Workflow & Payment Details Screen

When ImaginePay is enabled, the RIS payment workflow will now support entering a pre-approved payment amount that will be processed by ImaginePay and utilized to charge the patient up to an agreed upon amount if there is additional money owed by the patient after the claim has been adjudicated.

Payment arrangements will be completed at the time of check-in. If configured, the patient's previous balance is queried from Imagine and displayed along with the estimated visit cost and patient financial responsibility for their current appointment (as determined by existing functionality).

Payment is collected by navigating to the Order tab's Payments section. To take a payment with the option to enter a PreApproved Payment, the user will click the Add Payment button.

Rather than immediately opening the existing ImaginePay Add Time of Service Payment dialog to collect the payment, a new Payment Details dialog will first prompt for the specific amounts to collect and provide the opportunity to enter a PreApproved payment amount.

🥝 Payment Details			×
Previous Balance	\$100.00	Payment for Previous Balance	\$100.00
Estimated Visit Cost	\$454.00		
Today's Copay Portion	\$0.00		
Today's Deductible Portion	\$100.00		
Today's Co-Insurance Portion	\$35.40		
Est. Patient Responsibility	\$135.40	Payment for Current DOS	\$35.40
		Amount to collect	\$135.40
		PreApproved Payment Amount	\$100.00
		No credit card No time	of service payment
Override		0	pen ImaginePay

A NEW PAYMENT DIALOG INCORPORATES PREVIOUS, CURRENT, AND FUTURE AMOUNTS.

The dialog allows the user to:

- Review and adjust the Payment for previous balance amount.
 - Default will be the full amount of the previous balance provided by Imagine.
 - If Previous Balance is not configured or if a previous balance does not exist for the patient, the Previous Balance and Payment for Previous Balance fields will be hidden.
- Review Estimated Visit Cost, Copay/Deductible/Co-insurance Portions, and total Estimated Patient Responsibility.
 - These values are read only.
 - For further insight into the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility or to make adjustments, the <u>override</u> button is available to open the existing <u>Patient Financial Responsibility</u> <u>override</u> screen.
 - In the event that changes are saved on the Override screen, the Payment Details screen will refresh to account for those changes (values will change accordingly).
 - The Estimated Visit Cost will be populated from the National Payer Database (NPD) if available. Patient financial responsibility fields are populated from the Eligibility return (with possible modifications due to configuration) if available.
- Review and adjust the Payment for current DOS amount.
 - Default will be displayed based on configuration (discussed below).
 - If Previous Balance does not exist, this field will be hidden and the amount of the payment for the current visit will be shown in the Amount to Collect field.
 - If Previous Balance does exist, this field will be visible and the amount can be edited if the user has full Clinical.EditAmountToCollectOrCurrentDOSPaymentAmount permission. (New Access Strings are detailed in Configuration section below.)
- Review the Amount to collect.
 - If a Previous Balance exists, this field is the sum of the Payment for Previous Balance and Payment for Current DOS fields. The field is Read Only in this scenario.
 - If a Previous Balance does *not* exist, there is no need to distinguish between payment for previous balance and payment for the current DOS—both of those fields will be hidden. In this case, the Amount to Collect field is an editable field (with

Clinical.EditAmountToCollectOrCurrentDOSPaymentAmount permissions) and the default will be set according to configuration (see Configuration section below).

- Review the <u>PreApproved payment amount</u> and, with <u>Clinical.EditPreApprovedPayment</u> permission, adjust the amount.
 - Default will be set according to configuration (see below).
- When the patient indicates they have no credit card (paying by cash or check), checking the <u>No credit</u> <u>card available</u> checkbox will update the <u>PreApproved payment amount</u> to <u>0.00</u> and make it readonly. This will allow users who do not have permission to edit the PreApproved Payment Amount the

ability to handle situations where the patient does not have a credit or debit card and therefore cannot preapprove payment.

- Checking this box will also disable the "No time of service payment" checkbox, as this box is irrelevant if the patient does not have a credit card.
- After reviewing amounts, the user will click the <u>Open ImaginePay</u> button to open the ImaginePay dialog and pass these values for processing. See ImaginePay integration section for details.
- Note: Please see section "PreApproved Payment Without a Payment at TOS" for details regarding the checkbox for "No time of service payment."

The user will complete the payment transaction in ImaginePay. The user experience in ImaginePay does not change: no information about the PreApproved Payment is visible in ImaginePay's UI.

As before, a RIS-based reciept will be generated with details of the transactions, and should now include information about the PreApproved amount.



Changes to the receipt template will be handled by the customer or eRAD Support. It is recommended that the cardholder's consent be captured by having them sign the printed receipt, which can be scanned into RIS.

ImaginePay Integration Changes

Two new fields will be passed to the ImaginePay API:

Eligib	leForBalanceBilling	Bool	Eligibility marker for Balance Billing Requests
Balan	ceBillingAmount	Decimal	The total balance billing amount

- EligibleForBalanceBilling will be set to True if there is a PreApproved Payment entered (anything greater than \$0.00).
- The BalanceBillingAmount will be the PreApproved payment amount.

PreApproved Payment Without a Payment at TOS

There are times when a user will need to set up a PreApproved Payment when an actual payment is not being made in the same transaction (e.g. the patient does not owe anything for Amount to Collect). In order for the PreApproved Payment to be processed in ImaginePay, a nominal charge must be made to "tokenize" the card. Typically, this is covered by the patient's time of service payment (either payment for the current visit or payment for a previous balance), but when a payment is not collected on the Date of Service, it is still possible to for the patient to agree to a PreApproved Payment amount as long as a nominal charge is made to the card.

A new System Configuration setting has been added to indicate the amount for the nominal charge. The recommendation is for this to be for the smallest amount possible.

Setting	Default	Purpose
NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment	Value=Decimal, <mark>Default=[0.10]</mark>	If a PreApproved Payment is set up when a patient is not also making a payment in the same transaction, a nominal charge is required for ImaginePay to tokenize the credit card. This setting controls the amount that will be charged to the credit card for the tokenization process. This amount is not applied when taking a payment and setting up a PreApproved payment in the same transaction. Added in v3.2018.5.24 #27641

No additional amount is necessary if the patient is paying their CoPay or some other amount at the time of the transaction. The nominal charge is only required if no other money is being charged to the credit card to be used for the PreApproved Payment. In the event that a user makes changes that result in an Amount to Collect of \$0.00

eRAD RIS Customer Release Notes

and then clicks to Open ImaginePay to set up the PreApproved Payment, RIS will automatically update the Amount to Collect to the value indicated by the above System Configuration setting. This will also occur if Amount to Collect is less than the value set for NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment] (e.g. Amount to Collect is \$0.01 and NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment is set to \$0.05).

Some examples might be beneficial to understand the various scenarios where a PreApproved Payment is needed without a time of service payment:

- **Example 1**: There is not an eligibility connection and the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility is unknown. No prior balance exists. There is a matching PreApproved Payment rule not to collect anything at time of service and to set up a PreApproved Payment for the estimated Visit Cost.
 - In this example, the Amount to Collect is \$0.00. The user does not need to do anything. When the user clicks the Open ImaginePay button, RIS will adjust the payment to the value configured for the NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment] setting (e.g. \$0.10). The user will see this charge in ImaginePay and the payment amount (the nominal charge) and PreApproved Payment amount will both be recorded in the Payment grid after the user completes the ImaginePay transaction.
- **Example 2**: There is an eligibility connection, but the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility is \$0.00. No prior balance exists. There is a matching PreApproved Payment rule that results in nothing to collect at time of service and a PreApproved Payment for 20% of the estimated Visit Cost.
 - \circ $\;$ This example will be handled in the same fashion as Example 1.
- **Example 3**: The patient has a previous balance of \$50. There is a matching PreApproved Payment rule to collect 50% of the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility, which is \$100. The rule also defaults a PreApproved Payment of 100% of the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility. The patient cannot pay anything at time of service, but agrees to the PreApproved Payment.
 - In this example, the initial defaults will be as follows:
 - Payment for Previous Balance: \$50.00 (the full amount of the Previous Balance from Imagine)
 - Payment for Current DOS: \$50.00 (50% of \$100)
 - Amount to Collect: \$100 (sum of Previous Balance and Current DOS payments)
 - PreApproved Payment Amount: \$50.00 (the remaining cost of the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility, i.e. \$100 minus the \$50 Payment for Current DOS)
 - To accommodate the patient's inability to pay, the user will need to change the defaulted values. There are two ways to accomplish this:
 - <u>Method 1</u>: The user can manually update the Payment for Previous Balance to \$0.00. If the user has Full permission to the access string
 <u>Clinical.EditAmountToCollectOrCurrentDOSPaymentAmount</u>], the user can change the Payment for Current DOS to \$0.00 or to the amount established for the nominal charge

(e.g. \$0.10). If the user chooses \$0.00, RIS will update this to the value configured for the NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment setting when the user clicks the Open ImaginePay button.

<u>Method 2</u>: If it is not desirable to give all users full access to
 <u>Clinical.EditAmountToCollectOrCurrentDOSPaymentAmount</u>, another option is available. A new access string that controls a checkbox for <u>No time of service</u>
 <u>payment</u> can be set to Full instead: <u>Clinical.NoTimeOfServicePaymentCheckbox</u>.
 When the user checks this box, the Payment for Previous Balance will be automatically set to \$0.00 and the Payment for Current DOS will be set to the value for NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment (e.g. \$0.10). This method results in fewer clicks and the No Time of Service Payment checkbox allows an administrator to give certain users enough permission to handle this scenario without also giving access to edit the Payment for Current DOS or Amount to Collect fields to other amounts.

@ Payment Details			х
Previous Balance	\$100.00	Payment for Previous Balance	\$0.00
Estimated Visit Cost	\$454.00		
Today's Copay Portion	\$0.00		
Today's Deductible Portion	\$100.00		
Today's Co-Insurance Portion	\$35.40		
Est. Patient Respor	\$135.40	Payment for Current DOS	\$0.10
This value would update to \$	135.30 if	Amount to collect	\$0.10
Default PreApproved Paymer was configured as 100% estir		PreApproved Payment Amount	\$100.00
Patient Financial Responsibil		No credit card 🔽 No time	of service payment
Override		Ο	pen ImaginePay

When the "No time of service payment" checkbox is checked, the "No credit card" checkbox will be disabled, as the two checkboxes would never be used simultaneously (i.e. if the user is setting up the patient for a PreApproved Payment with a nominal charge, it will only be effective if the patient has a credit card to set up the PreApproved Payment).

- Note that both methods above will result in an update to the value for PreApproved Payment because reducing the Payment for Current DOS will increase the amount needed to meet the rule of collecting 100% of the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility. If the nominal charge is configured as \$0.04, the final outcome would be:
 - Final Payment: \$0.04
 - PreApproved Payment Amount: \$99.96

Order A/B Scenario

When a combined payment is made for multiple orders at the same time, the PreApproved Payment Rules may be different for the orders. In this case, the amounts would be determined separately for each order and the sum of the Amount to Collect and PreApproved Payment amounts would be displayed on the Payment Details screen.

<u>Rule Type</u> conflicts between multiple orders may occur. Rule Types are explained in the Configuration section of this document in the explanation for the <u>PreApprovedPaymentRules</u> editor. The following logic is applied when conflicts exist:

- In the event that Order A has a "Disable" rule type and Order B has a "Required" rule type, Order A (Disabled) should be ignored when calculating the PreApproved Payment Amount. Because Order B is Required, a PreApproved Payment must be entered, unless the No Credit Card checkbox is checked.
 - In other words, if any order has a "Disable" rule type, ignore that order for the calculation of PreApproved Payment amount.
- In the event that Order A has an "Allowed" rule type and Order B has a "Required" rule type, a PreApproved Payment Amount must be entered, unless the No Credit Card checkbox is checked.
 - In other words, if any order has a "Required" rule type, a PreApproved Payment Amount must be entered, unless the No Credit Card checkbox is checked.
- Following that logic, a combination of "Allowed" and "Disabled" would mean that the Disabled Order would be ignored for determining the PreApproved Payment Amount default and the user would NOT be forced to have a value in the PreApproved Payment Amount field.

Another difference for multi-order scenarios is the Override button. Because the Override screen is an order-level screen with data that is specific to each order, the Override button will be hidden when a payment is collected that incorpates multiple orders. If a user needs to make overrides and did not do so prior to clicking the Add Payment button, the user can close the Payment Details screen and visit the Override screen for each order prior to reinitiating the payment.

Compatibility with Existing Max Payment Settings

There are two existing System Configuration settings related to setting maximums for payment amounts:

- MaxPaymentAboveAmountToCollect Maximum dollar amount above the amount to collect that will be allowed.
- MaxPayment Maximum dollar amount that can be paid in a single payment.

These settings should continue to be applied against the Payment for Current DOS (or Amount to Collect if no Previous Balance exists). They should *not* be applied to the PreApproved Payment Amount or Previous Balance.

Multiple Payments

It is possible that a user may launch Payment Details a second time to take an additional payment on the same order. If a PreApproved Payment already exists, the PreApproved Payment field and the corresponding checkboxes (No Credit Card / No Time of Service Payment) will be hidden on the Payment Details screen. If the user wants to enter a different PreApproved Payment, they would need to void the previous transaction that included the existing PreApproved Payment. Then when Payment Details is opened, the PreApproved Payment controls will be visible again. See more information about the Void process below.

Other Payments Section Changes

The Add Payment button has been discussed in detail above. Several additional changes have been made to the Payments section.

Pa	iy	ments			
		Date	Posted By	Method	Amount
J	⊧	08-02-2021	gary	CreditCard	\$67.70
		06-02-2021	gary	PreApprov	\$13.54
P	a	id: \$67.70		Add Payment	View

Payment amounts will appear in the Payments grid after the ImaginePay transaction is completed, as usual. This is done using the ImaginePay API to determine the amount and method of transaction that was made by the user in the ImaginePay UI. The PreApproved Payment information is not included in the ImaginePay response. If the response includes a successful Credit Card payment (of any amount), RIS will consider the PreApproved Payment value from the Payment Details screen to be confirmed and will add an entry to the Payments grid.

PreApproved Payments will be shown in red font to easily distinguish them from an actual payment. Under the Method column, these will be described as <u>PreApproved Payment</u>. Note that if the ImaginePay API does not return a successful Credit Card transaction (e.g. the patient paid via Cash or Check), an entry for PreApproved Payment will not be added. This is because ImaginePay will ignore the PreApproved Payment request if no money is charged to a credit card.

Previously, RIS displayed a Total label under the bottom left corner of the grid that calculated the sum of all payments. With this feature, this label will be changed to Paid and will continue to display the total of the actual payments, <u>not including</u> any PreApproved Payment amounts.

Once the insurance has adjudicated the claim, Imagine will charge up to the PreApproved Amount to collect the remaining amount owed by the patient. If the amount owed is more than the PreApproved Amount, only the PreApproved amount is charged, and the remainder will be billed to the patient. However, a PreApproved Payment will never be updated in RIS when an amount is eventually charged to the patient's credit card. This will be handled in Imagine.

Voiding PreApproved Payment

Once finalized in ImaginePay, there is a possibility that a patient may ask that their PreApproved Payment agreement be retracted or the amount adjusted.

Same-Day Changes

eRAD RIS Customer Release Notes

If the request is made on the same day of the transaction, the user can use the existing Void Payment context menu option. Per ImaginePay, it is not possible to void the PreApproved Payment without voiding the entire transaction, meaning PreApproved Payment *and* true payment (i.e. the nominal charge, previous balance payment and/or an actual time of service payment—money that was actually chargd to the credit card). To do so, the user will right-click the row for the Credit Card payment with the same Imagine payment reference number as the PreApproved Payment. Then click the <u>Void Payment</u> option. A confirmation prompt will be displayed.

C Void P	ayment		^
Are you:	sure you want to void this	transaction?	
	will void the payment and		
Long so	will yok the payment and	PreApproved Payme	ni.

If the user chooses Yes, RIS will use the usual <u>Void Entire Transaction</u> method to update ImaginePay's API. The Payments grid will then be updated to show a Void row for the payment (as usual) and it will also change the existing row for the PreApproved Payment to \$0.00 and change the Method description to "Voided PreApproved Payment". If needed, the user can then re-enter a new payment from scratch.

	Date	Posted By	Method	Amount
	05-06-2021	gary	CreditCard	\$15.00
Þ	05-06-2021	gary	Voided PreAp	\$0.00
	05-06-2021	gary	Void	(\$15.00)
				\square
Da	id: \$0.00		Add Payment	View

Future-Day Changes

In the event that the patient wants to retract their PreApproved Payment *after* the date of the original transaction, the user will need to contact their Reimbursement Operations representative to handle this directly in Imagine.

Configuration Instructions

System Administrators must complete the following actions to enable this feature and Service Team assistance is required for some actions:

RIS Client

Changes to RIS System Configuration Settings

The following related settings were added or updated:

Setting	Default	Purpose
AllowImaginePreApprovedPayment	Value=Boolean, Default=[False]	When True and ImaginePay is enabled, the PreApproved Payment workflow is enabled. Added in v3.2018.5.24 #27641
NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment	Value=Decimal, Default=[0.10]	If a PreApproved Payment is set up when a patient is not also making a payment in the same transaction, a nominal charge is required for ImaginePay to tokenize the credit card. This setting controls the amount that will be charged to the credit card for the tokenization process. This amount is not applied when taking a payment and setting up a PreApproved payment in the same transaction. Added in v3.2018.5.24 #27641

Changes to RIS Access String Settings

The following related settings were added or updated:

Setting	Default	Purpose
Clinical.PaymentDetails	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls access to the "Payment Details" screen prior to launching ImaginePay when AllowImaginePreApprovedPayment is enabled. This will allow the user to collect a PreApproved Payment. To edit the default value for the PreApproved Payment, Clinical.EditPreApprovedPaymentAmount is also needed. Added in #27641.
Clinical.EditAmountToCollectOrCurrentDOSPa- ymentAmount	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls the ability to edit the "Amount to Collect" value in the Payment Details dialog when a Previous Balance does not exist. Controls the ability to edit the "Payment for current DOS" value when a Previous Balance does exist. Added in #27641.
Clinical.NoTimeOfServicePaymentCheckbox	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls the access to the "No time of service payment" checkbox on the Payment Details screen. This action sets the Payment for Previous Balance to \$0.00 and sets the Payment for Current DOS and Amount to Collect to the value for NominalChargeForPreApprovedPayment (e.g. \$0.10) to allow for a PreApproved Payment.
Clinical.EditPreApprovedPaymentAmount	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls the ability to edit the "PreApproved payment amount" value in the Payment Details dialog when AllowImaginePreApprovedPayment is enabled. Added in #27641.
Config.LookupEditor.PreApprovedPaymentRule	Value=[None Full], Default=[None]	Controls access to the "PreApprovedPaymentRule" lookup table editor. Added in #27641.

Changes to PreApproved Payment Rules Settings

A new lookup editor called <u>PreApprovedPaymentRules</u> is now available to configure defaults for the type of rule and default Amount to Collect and PreApproved Payment Amounts, under specific conditions.



RULE COMPONENTS

Rules have three key components:

1. Rule Type (dropdown)

- Possible values:
 - Allowed
 - Required
 - o Disabled

- When configured conditions are met, PreApproved Payment will be either allowed, required, or disabled.
 - When Disabled, the PreApproved Payment field is blank and disabled.
 - When Required, the user must have a value greater than \$0.00 entered in the PreApproved Payment Amount field. (If the user does *not* have Clinical.EditPreApprovedPaymentAmount set to Full, they would be required to leave the default value for PreApproved Payment Amount). The only way to bypass would be to check the box for No Credit Card.
 - When Allowed, the user may proceed with the payment even if the PreApproved Payment Amount is \$0.00 or blank. However, if the user does *not* have Clinical.EditPreApprovedPaymentAmount set to Full and a default value greater than \$0.00 is present, they would not have access to edit the default value for PreApproved Payment Amount and therefore this would be treated in the same fashion as Required.

2. Default ATC (Time of Service Amount to Collect) (dialog)

- Possible values:
 - ____% of estimated Patient Financial Responsibility
 - \circ Sum of:
 - ___% CoPay
 - ___% CoInsurance
 - ____% Remaining Deductible
- Example:

₢ Edit	Defaul	t AT	c	х
Ŭ	0	*	ted Patient Financial Responsibility %	
•	Sum of:			
	100	÷	% of CoPay	
	100	÷	% of Colnsurance	
	0	÷	% of Remaining Deductible	
			OK Cancel	

- Note: If 100 is selected for CoPay, CoInsurance and Remaining Deductible, this is equivalent to 100% of estimated Patient Financial Responsibility and will be saved as such.
- When configured conditions are met, the configured amount will be the default for the Amount to Collect.
- For all of the possible values, RIS will always subtract any previous payment, if one was already collected.

3. Default PreApproved Payment Amount (dialog)

- Possible values:
 - % of estimated Patient Financial Responsibility
 - To get a PreApproval for unpaid estimated Patient Financial Responsibility, administrator would enter 100%.
 - To get a PreApproval for 10% over the estimated Patient Financial Responsibility (e.g. if the estimated PFR is likely to be too low under certain conditions), administrator would enter 110%.
 - ____% of Estimated Visit Cost
- Example:

🥝 Edit Default PreApproved Payment Amount	х
 % of Patient Financial Responsibility 100 % 	
○ % of Visit Cost 0 [*]	
OK Cancel	

- When configured conditions are met, the configured amount will be the default for the PreApproved Payment.
- For all of the possible values, RIS will always subtract any payment for the current date of service.

If the PreApproved Payment default is configured as 100% of Estimated Visit Cost and the patient paid their \$40 Copay, the \$100 Estimated Visit Cost would result in a default PreApproved Payment of \$60.

- This means that if the amount collected for today's DOS is edited, the screen will dynamically update the PreApproved Payment default amount accordingly.
- If the PreApproved Payment field is edited manually, automatic updates will cease.

RULE CONDITIONS

In addition to the three main rule components, a variety of conditions can be configured:

• Primary Carrier

nar	уC	a	1161					
0	E	xaı	mple:					
	1	Ce	Edit Carrier					
		Una	assigned:				Ass	signed:
			Contains:	T 1	•			Contains:
		►	a (0000test)				►	UHC (2904)
			Self pay no discount (0100)					UHC (UHC)
			demo (0100demo)					UHC FFS (xyz sites) (UHCFFS)
			Erad Demo Cap Ins (0100DemoCap)			→		UHC Demo (UHF)
			Erad Demo Limited Carrier Row Config (0100Dem					

- Primary Carrier Type
 - Carrier or Carrier Type can be used but not both.

Erad Demo Limited (0100DemoLimited)

- o Secondary Carrier
 - Options for Secondary Carrier rule:
 - All (default, prior to opening the pop-up editor) --in other words, it doesn't matter whether there is a Secondary.
 - None --in other words, only apply this rule if there is NOT a Secondary.
 - Include ______ --only apply the rule if the Secondary is on the selected list
 - Exclude ______ --only apply the rule if the Secondary is something other than what is selected

	econdary Carrier:	C	NONE			
Un	nassigned:		\square	Ass	signed:	
	Contains:	r 🔺	10		Contains:	
	ERIE INSURANCE (0501100)			▶	NORTHLAND INSURANCE (050116)	
►	WEST AMERICAN INSURANCE (0501103)				RESPONSE INSURANCE (0501204)	
	ALLSTATE INSURANCE (0501107)				PARAMOUNT INSURANCE (050105)	
	CALIFORNIA CASULTY INSURANCE (0501117)					
	STATE FARM INSURANCE (0501185)		→			
	WESTFIELD INSURANCE (0501188)		÷			
	KEYSTONE AUTO INSURANCE (050119)					
	PENN NATIONAL INSURANCE (0501219)					
	NATIONWIDE INSURANCE (0501224)					
	NATIONWIDE INSURANCE (0501227)					
	STATE FARM AUTO INSURANCE (050137)					
	TRANSGUARD GENERAL INSURANCE (050138)					

- o Billing Code
- o Billing Modality Type
- o Procedure Code
- Procedure Group Code
 - Only one of the above 4 categories can be defined: Billing Code, Billing Modality Type, Procedure Code OR Procedure Group Code.
- o Eligibility Details
 - This condition is available to include specific information from the eligibility return.
 - The "Edit Eligibility Details" screen is almost identical to the "Edit Matching String SQL" screen that appears in the EligibilitySpeicalConditions editor. In this case, instead of right-clicking to get the Edit Sql screen, the user can click on an Eligibility Details cell. As a helpful tool, this editor will show eligibility rows for any studies currently open in the RIS and, when they match, those rows will move to the "Examples that match" grid.

VIEW	WEak. DE/	NNN, DIGHK #31200K						
	🖳 Edit	t Eligibility Details						
:Multi,	SQL AllTex	t like '%10010010 % '						
	Example	es that Match LineItemSampleCor	LineItemComment	CarrierCode	Memberld	InsuranceSequenc	PrimaryCarrierCode	SecondaryCar
	•		PCP SELECTIO	0100demo	10010010	1	0100demo	

o Sites

0

• As a way to quickly find Sites to add to the rules conditions, the user can select a Practice, which will filter the list of Sites based on the selected Practice, so the user can easily multi-select the desired Sites and move them to the Assigned column.

0	nly show sites in this practice:	ced Radiology		Ŧ			
U	nassigned:			As	signed:		
	Contains:	٣	·		Contains:		,
)	ADV - daletest (dale)			►	ADV - daletest (dale)		
	ADV - PT QE PT QE Eldersburg (EL)						
	ADV - PT QE PT QE Fisher (FH)						
	ADV - PT QE PT QE Lutherville (LU)		→				

RULE ORDER

Rules will be applied sequentially and RIS will stop evaluating as soon as a match is found, ignoring any other rules below, in the same fashion as InsuranceServiceTypeRules (upon which this editor was based). The master default rule should be the last rule (highest Display Order) and will only be applied if no other rule matches the conditions.

Because the order of the rules determines how they will be applied, the editor allows users to Insert items above or below the currently selected row. There is also an option to move the selected row up or down (this was added to the InsuranceServiceTypeRules editor as well).

	50% of Visit Cost	0120	(all)
	433% of Patient Financial Responsibility	010040	(0)
,	0% of Patient Financial Responsibility	Move Up	
		Move Down	
		Insert Above	•
		Insert Below	

EligibilitySpecialConditions editor.

FIND TOOL FOR RULES

The <u>PreApprovedPaymentRules</u> editor also has a <u>Find</u> tool. Any text typed in the Find text box will highlight any cells containing matching text in yellow.

Find	1: 25									
	Order	Description	Rule Type	Default ATC	Default Preapproved Payment Amount	Carrier	Carrier Type	Secondary Carrier	Billing Code	Billin
*				Click here to add	d a new row					
	1	Non Covered Service Example - 100PFR/100Visit	Required	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	100% of Visit Cost	050105	(all)	(all)	70120	(all)
	2	Test _ 25/100 for US THyroid	Allowed	25% of Patient Financial Responsibility	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	050122	(all)	(all)	78010	(all)
	3	Maching String Example	Allowed	50% of Patient Financial Responsibility	25% of Visit Cost	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)
	4	Standard - 100% PFR at TOS, 100% PFR PAPA	Allowed	100% of Patient Financial Responsibil	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)

When cells contain a list of selected codes (e.g. carrier codes, billing codes, procedure codes), the text typed must exactly match one of the codes in the selected list.

Fi	nd: 780	10								
	Ord	er Description	Rule Type	Default ATC	Default Preapproved Payment Amount	Carrier	Carrier Type	Secondary Carrier	Billing Code	Billin
*				Click here to ad	d a new row					
Þ	1	Non Covered Service Example - 100PFR/100Visit	Required	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	100% of Visit Cost	050105	(all)	(all)	70120	(all)
	2	Test - 25/100 for US THyroid	Allowed	25% of Patient Financial Responsibility	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	050122	(all)	(all)	78010	(all)
	3	Matching String Example	Allowed	50% of Patient Financial Responsibility	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)
	4	Standard - 100% PFR at TOS, 100% PFR PAPA	Allowed	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	100% of Patient Financial Responsibility	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)	(all)

The Find tool is particularly helpful when troubleshooting, to highlight the rules that might be a match. As described above, the first matching rule is the rule that applies.



The Find tool was also added to the InsuranceServiceTypeRule RIS System Config editor.

Changes to ChangeLog Settings

Logging of edits to the <u>PreApprovedPaymentRules</u> table can be is enabled via the <u>ChangeLog</u> RIS Lookup Table Editor.

Forms and Templates

Changes to Reciept Template

As before, a RIS-based reciept will be generated with details of the transactions and should now include information about the PreApproved amount. Changes to the receipt template will be handled by the customer or eRAD Support. It is recommended that the cardholder's consent be captured by having them sign the printed receipt, which can be scanned into RIS.

RESOLVED ISSUES AND KNOWN LIMITATIONS

Resolved Issues

This release resolves the following issues:

Redmine #	Subject
29803	Resolved database performance issue when requesting Delete Dictation/Report and Reset Status.
29265	Resolved Exam Search performance issue when opening the Exam Search screen.
30001	Resolved Insurance Management issue where Amount To Collect was not cleared when changing policies.
30016	Resolved Insurance Management memory leak issue related to event registration.
29986	Resolved Performance issue where the AI arbitrator would run when AI was not enabled.
29452	Resolved Provider Images issue where Portal-PACS v8 failed to load images due to PACS session timeout.
29708	Resolved Worklists performance issue when loading the Image Request worklist.
29953	Resolved Worklists performance issue when paging materialized worklists.
29954	Resolved Worklists performance issue when using parametrized queries.
30036	Resolved Patient Demographics issue where phone number labels were incorrect after EMR merge.

Known Limitations

New Known Limitations

The following new Known Limitations were identified with this release:

- FEATURE #29943
 - Detailed Audit History entries for changes made on the Payment Details screen are not available.
 - When registering multiple orders (Order A / Order B) and taking separate payments for each order, the Override button on the Payment Details screen can display data for the wrong order.
- BUG #30033 Issue with doing combined Payments in Registration with PreApproved Payments
- BUG **#29990** All Edit screens in InsuranceServiceTypeRule and most in the newer PreApprovedPaymentRule lookup show Assigned entries in the Unassigned list

Resolved Known Limitations

The following previously reported Known Limitations were resolved with this release:

• BUG #29452, reported in the ERAD RIS v3.2021.5.10 RELEASE NOTES, resolves a Provider Images issue where Portal-PACS v8 failed to load images due to a PACS session timeout.

VERSION DETAILS

Package Contents

The release package includes the following folders:

퉬 @Hotfixes	04/20/12 8:51 AM
Documentation	05/31/21 3:19 PM
퉬 _ReleaseNotes	06/01/21 9:59 AM
퉬 Client Application	05/31/21 3:17 PM
퉬 DB	05/31/21 3:17 PM
퉬 External WebAPI	05/31/21 3:17 PM
퉬 Identity Service	05/31/21 3:17 PM
MWLServerConfig	05/31/21 3:17 PM
퉬 PACS Citrix Bridge	05/31/21 3:18 PM
🍌 RIS Service	05/31/21 3:17 PM
🍌 Service Tools	05/31/21 3:19 PM
퉬 Web Digital Forms	05/31/21 3:18 PM
퉬 Web Patient Connect	05/31/21 3:18 PM
퉬 Web Referring Connect	05/31/21 3:18 PM
퉬 Web UM Connect	05/31/21 3:18 PM
🚹 Build_2021.5.24.zip	05/31/21 3:20 PM
RISServerMasterCert.pfx	03/31/16 1:38 PM

Code Stream

The following source code branches have been merged into this release:



Light Green = Previously Released software

Gray = Internal version, non-release version Bright Green = Current Release

eRAD RIS Release Version Numbers

The following table details the version identifiers for components in this release:

Build	Patch	UI Version	Core Version	WS Version	DB Version	Digital Forms	Patient Portal	UM Portal	Provider Portal	Notes
2018.5	6	3.18.5.6(3GB)	3.18.5.6	3.18.5.6	3.18.5.6.0.02571320	3.18.5.6.0	3.18.5.6.0.1050	3.18.5.6.0.1050	3.18.5.6.0.1050	Full version release
2018.5	6.1	3.18.5.6.1(3GB)	3.18.5.6.1	3.18.5.6.1	3.18.5.6.1.02601339	3.18.5.6.1	3.18.5.6.1.1070	3.18.5.6.1.1070	3.18.5.6.1.1070	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM Portals and Digital Forms
2018.5	6.2	3.18.5.6.2(3GB)	3.18.5.6.2							GUI
2018.5	6.3	3.18.5.6.3(3GB)	3.18.5.6.3	3.18.5.6.3	3.21.5.10.002823110					GUI and Webservices
2020.12.21	-	3.20.12.21.0(3GB)	3.18.5.6	3.20.12.21.0	3.20.12.21.0.02608693	3.20.12.21.0	3.20.12.21.0.897	3.20.12.21.0.897	3.20.12.21.0.897	Full version release
2021.1.4		3.21.1.4.0(3GB)	3.21.1.4				3.21.1.4.0.1075	3.21.1.4.0.1075	3.21.1.4.0.1075	GUI and Patient/Provider/UM portals
2021.1.18	-	3.21.1.18.0(3GB)	3.21.1.18	3.21.1.18.0	3.21.1.18.002652234	3.21.1.18.0	3.21.1.18.0.1081	3.21.1.18.0.1081	3.21.1.18.0.1081	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.2.1	-	3.21.2.1.0(3GB)	3.21.2.1	3.21.2.1.0	3.21.2.1.002672074	3.21.2.1.0	3.21.2.1.0.1090	3.21.2.1.0.1090	3.21.2.1.0.1090	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.2.15	-	3.21.2.15.0(3GB)	3.21.2.15	3.21.2.15.0	3.21.2.15.002698266	3.21.2.15.0	3.21.2.15.0.1111	3.21.2.15.0.1111	3.21.2.15.0.1111	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.2.15	1	3.21.2.15.1(3GB)	3.21.2.15.1	3.21.2.15.1		3.21.2.15.1	3.21.2.15.1.1113	3.21.2.15.1.1113	3.21.2.15.1.1113	GUI, Web Services, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.2.15	2	3.21.2.15.2(3GB)	3.21.2.15.2	3.21.2.15.2		3.21.2.15.2	3.21.2.15.2.1122	3.21.2.15.2.1122	3.21.2.15.2.1122	GUI, Web Services, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.2.15	3	3.21.2.15.3(3GB)	3.21.2.15.3							GUI
2021.2.15	4	3.21.2.15.4(3GB)	3.21.2.15.4	3.21.2.15.4	3.21.2.15.402732838	3.21.2.15.4	3.21.2.15.4.1133	3.21.2.15.4.1133	3.21.2.15.4.1133	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.2.15	5	3.21.2.15.5(3GB)	3.21.2.15.5	3.21.2.15.5	3.21.2.15.502738557					GUI, Web Services and DB
2021.2.15	6	3.21.2.15.6(3GB)	3.21.2.15.6	3.21.2.15.6						GUI and Web Services
2021.3.1	-	3.21.3.1(3GB)	3.21.3.1	3.21.3.1	3.21.3.1.002712308	3.21.3.1	3.21.3.1.0.1119	3.21.3.1.0.1119	3.21.3.1.0.1119	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.3.15	-	3.21.3.15(3GB)	3.21.3.15	3.21.3.15	3.21.3.15.002747230	3.21.3.15	3.21.3.15.0.1144	3.21.3.15.0.1144	3.21.3.15.0.1144	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.4.12		3.21.4.12(3GB)	3.21.4.12	3.21.4.12	3.21.4.12.002778929	3.21.4.12	3.21.4.12.0.1167	3.21.4.12.0.1167	3.21.4.12.0.1167	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.5.10	-	3.21.5.10(3GB)	3.21.5.10	3.21.5.10	3.21.5.10.002823110	3.21.5.10	3.21.5.10.0.1189	3.21.5.10.0.1189	3.21.5.10.0.1189	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms
2021.5.24	•	3.21.5.24(3GB)	3.21.5.24	3.21.5.24	3.21.5.24.002842120	3.21.5.24	3.21.5.24.0.1205	3.21.5.24.0.1205	3.21.5.24.0.1205	GUI, Web Services, DB, Patient/Provider/UM portals and Digital Forms